
May 08, 2023  Page 1 of 2 

 

City of Stevenson 
 

   Phone (509) 427-5970                                7121 E Loop Road, PO Box 371 

   Fax (509) 427-8202                                     Stevenson, Washington 98648 

 

 

 

May 2023 Planning Commission Meeting 

 

Monday, May 08, 2023 

 

6:00 PM 

 
A. Preliminary Matters 

1. Public Comment Expectations:      
 

In Person: Attendees at City Hall should follow current CDC and State guidance 
regarding use of masks, social distancing, and attendance. 

Webinar: https://us02web.zoom.us/s/85637388112  Conference Call: +1 253 215 8782 
or +1 346 248 7799 ID #: 856 3738 8112  

Commenters must raise their hand and be acknowledged by the Chair. Individual 
comments may be cut off after 3 mins. Disruptive individuals may be required to leave 
the meeting. Persistent disruptions may result in the meeting being recessed and 
continued at a later date. 

Tools: *6 to mute/unmute & *9 to raise hand 

 

2. Public Comment Period:     (For items not located elsewhere on the agenda) 

3. Minutes:   April 10, 2023 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 

B. New Business 

C. Old Business 

4. Shoreline Public Access:    Presentation from The Watershed Company 

5. Subcommittee Reports:     Updates from Subcommittee leads and discussions on 
Downtown Parking and Annexation Policy 

D. Discussion 

1



May 08, 2023  Page 2 of 2 

 

6. Thought of the Month:    (In)Complete Streets 
- https://smartgrowthamerica.org/complete-streets-are-being-co-opted-to-build-
unsafe-streets-who-is-at-fault/?eType=EmailBlastContent&eId=77e2e34c-ccd9-4d0e-
a7b0-c51be0154279   

Upzoning - https://www.strongtowns.org/journal/2023/4/26/upzoning-might-not-
lower-housing-costs-do-it-
anyway?apcid=0060f5c4aeb5b5bba4857800&utm_campaign=230501-
digest&utm_content=230501-digest&utm_medium=email&utm_source=ortto   

7. Staff & Commission Reports:     Broadband, East Loop Road Water Project, Spruce Up 
Stevenson, City Council Strategic Plan 

E. Adjournment 

2



 

April 10, 2023  Page 1 of 4 

 

DRAFT Minutes  

Stevenson Planning Commission Meeting 
 

Monday, April 10, 2023 

6:00 PM 

 Planning Commission Chair Jeff Breckel called the meeting to 
order at 6:00 p.m. 

 
MEMBERS PRESENT Planning Commission Chair Jeff Breckel, Commissioners Auguste 

Zettler, Davy Ray, Charles Hales, Anne Keesee 
 
STAFF PRESENT Community Development Director Ben Shumaker, Planning & 

Public Works Assistant Tiffany Andersen 
 
GUESTS PRESENT Carolyn Sourek, Stevenson Public Works Director; Alex Capron, 

DCG/The Watershed Company 
 
PUBLIC PRESENT Mary Repar, Mike Beck 
 
 
A. Preliminary Matters 
1. Public Comment Expectations Breckel asked Shumaker to provide participants information on 

providing public comments. Shumaker explained the tools to use for remote 
participants: *6 to mute/unmute & *9 to raise hand. Commenters must raise 
their hand and be acknowledged by the Chair. Individual comments may be 
limited to 3 minutes. 

2. Public Comment Period (For items not located elsewhere on the agenda) 

  >Repar talked about design standards and rural character and housing 
affordability. 

  >Beck provided comments on Community Land Trusts.  

  This led to a discussion by Commissioners regarding establishment and 
enforcement of design standards and housing cost drivers. 

3. February 13th, 2023 Minutes  MOTION to approve the minutes from the February 13th, 2023 
Planning Commission Meeting as presented was made by Hales, seconded 
by Zettler. (Note: the March 13th, 2023 meeting was cancelled.) 

● Voting aye: Breckel, Ray, Zettler, Hales, Keesee. 

 

B. New Business 

4. Conditional Use Permit: CUP2023-01 Cascade Pump Station 

a. Appearance of Fairness Doctrine: Shumaker explained and 
administered the Appearance of Fairness Doctrine. The Appearance of 
Fairness Doctrine is a rule of law requiring government decision-makers to 
conduct non-court hearings and proceedings in a way that is fair, impartial 

3



 

April 10, 2023  Page 2 of 4 

 

and unbiased in both appearance and fact. Any conflicts of interest must be 
disclosed to ensure fairness and impartiality. Disclosures include any 
financial interest in the final outcome, any outside (ex-parte) 
communications made with any party of interest or anything else that could 
be construed as a conflict or affects any decision making. Decision makers 
can be challenged by applicants regarding any perceived conflicts of interest. 

Upon questioning, none of the Planning Commissioners disclosed any ex-
parte communications concerning the application, and none reported any 
financial conflicts or other matters that would impede a fair and impartial 
decision. Hales disclosed his stepdaughter is the Public Works Director in 
Stevenson and explained it would not affect his ability to impartially review 
the application and that his part of the decision would be fair and impartial. 
There were no challenges by the applicant or the public. 

 b. Presentation by Staff: Shumaker referenced the written staff report for 
details on the application for the Cascade Wastewater Pump Station. The 
reason for the construction, location, relevant zoning information and more 
was included. He noted no shoreline approval was needed. Other permits are 
in process for additional work. Issuance of a Conditional Use Permit would 
allow modifications to the existing use. 

c. Presentation by Applicant: Sourek provided further information on the 
reason for the upgrade and modernization work on the Cascade Pump 
Station. Safety, age, efficiency and aesthetics were cited as concerns. She 
noted the city is under an administrative order from the Department of 
Ecology to improve it’s wastewater treatment program. 

 d. Public Hearing. Breckel opened the public hearing at 6:39. 

 >Repar commented on the need to ensure any critical areas are not impacted 
and on carbon offsets for the project.  

 Breckel closed the public hearing at 6:44. 

 e. Commission Deliberation: Breckel stated the Pump Station project 
appears to be climate change neutral. 

 f. Decision: 

MOTION to approve CUP permit findings was made by Ray, seconded by 
Zettler. 

 ● Voting aye: Breckel, Zettler, Keesee, Ray, Hales 

 Following the vote, Commissioners and staff shared thoughts on the impact 
of carbon offsets on future projects. 

  

5. Short Plat Review: SP2023-01 Knudsen Short Plat 

Shumaker introduced a proposed 2-lot short plat dividing property at 390 
NW Chesser Road in the City’s R1 Single-Family Residential District. The 
tax lot number is 03-07-36-1-3-2900-00. The property is currently developed 
with a single-family detached dwelling and residential outbuilding. Two lots 

4



 

April 10, 2023  Page 3 of 4 

 

are proposed for use as single-family residential. The proposal involves City 
water and sewer service. He recommended the Planning Commission bypass 
its review of the short plat and entrust the decision on the application to the 
Land Division Administrator. 

BY CONSENSUS, the Planning Commission chose not to comment. 

6. Short Plat Review: SP2023-02 Richard-Steeves Short Plat 

Shumaker introduced a proposed 2-lot short plat dividing property at 390 
NW Kanaka Creek Road in the City’s R1 Single-Family Residential District. 
The tax lot number is 03-07-36-1-4-2090-00. The property is currently 
developed with a single-family detached dwelling and residential 
outbuilding. Two lots are proposed for use as single-family residential. The 
proposal involves City water and is currently served by septic. He noted the 
Public Works Department recommended both lots connect to the sewer 
system when it becomes available and participate in the cost of the sewer 
extension. He then recommended the Planning Commission bypass its 
review of the short plat and entrust the decision on the application to the 
Land Division Administrator. 

BY CONSENSUS, the Planning Commission decided not to comment. 

7. Updating Public Comment Expectations: Considering additions to the current agenda content 

Following a brief discussion on setting clear expectations, it was agreed to 
include the following language in the agenda regarding public comment 
expectations: “Disruptive individuals may be required to leave the meeting. 
Persistent disruptions may result in the meeting being recessed and continued 
at a later date.” 

 

Old Business 

[NOTE: To accommodate the invited guest, item #8 was discussed prior to item #5.] 

8. Shoreline Public Access: Presentation from The Waterhsed Company 

Capron summarized the work and timeline regarding the integrated 
shoreline access & trails plan. Throughout the plan the City prioritizes 
continuous public pedestrian/walking access along the shorelines and 
shorelands of the Columbia River, Rock Creek and Rock Cove, within both 
City limits and the City’s urban growth area (SMP Public Access policy 
4.6.2(1)). Shoreline jurisdiction roughly encompasses all water bodies within 
City limits, including 200 feet landward the Ordinary High Water Mark.  
One goal is to have planning-level documentation, geographic and site 
analysis, and public input used to develop a set of prioritized shoreline 
projects for future grant funding applications.  

He discussed some public involvement activities including positive 
attendance and participation at the February 23rd public meeting and good 
feedback obtained from an online survey. He discussed an upcoming charette 
planned for April 19th in Stevenson. Nine potential projects will be presented 
at four stations for public comments. Suggestions on increasing public 
participation were offered. 

5



 

April 10, 2023  Page 4 of 4 

 

Planning Commissioners discussed public and private access, additional trail 
possibilities, and maintaining Stevenson’s river town and/or rural character. 
Capron was thanked for his work. He will attend the May 8th, 2023 Planning 
Commission meeting with more information and results from the April 19th, 
2023 meeting. 

9. Subcommittee Reports Downtown Parking, Annexation Policy 

 Hales reported on the Annexation Subcommittee. He noted plans to work on 
the issue over the summer, and expressed appreciation for the maps he has 
been sent. 

 Keesee reported on Downtown Parking. She met briefly with Shumaker and 
will meet again soon to develop a parking usage study to be done in July 
2023 to assess summer parking demand. A prior usage study was done in 
September 2021. 

 

Discussion 

10. Staff & Commission Reports Broadband. Rural areas lacking high speed internet are getting more 
attention. Separate projects are being funded through Washington State and 
the federal government to determine best ways to provide services through 
local providers. Skamania County, Mid-Columbia Economic Development 
District and Washington State University are serving as partners.   

 East Loop Road Water & Street Project. The water lines along the east 
end of Loop Road are being replaced. Resurfacing of the road will take place 
when the project is completed. 

 Water Treatment Plant. Construction is active, will continue as completion 
timeline has been set back due to supply chain delays. The administrative 
order from the Department of Ecology has been lifted due to progress. At the 
April 2023 City Council Meeting the Mayor and City Council will be 
reconsidering the moratorium previously enacted on commercial hookups. 

11. Thought of the Month Rural Urbanism. https://www.cnu.org/publicsquare/2023/03/30/rural-
urbanist-towns-contradiction-orfuture   

  Parking Reform Network. https://parkingreform.org/resources/parking-lot-
map/ 

  >Repar announced the Grange will hold its annual Plant and Seed Swap on 
April 22nd at the Stevenson Library from 10 a.m. to 2 p.m. 

  Breckel observed the dynamics of city of Roslyn may offer insight based on 
the changes it is facing. New residents are moving in and long-term residents 
are unhappy with changes occurring. 

Adjournment MOTION to adjourn at 8:03 p.m. was made by Zettler, seconded by 
Keesee. No objections. 

  

Minutes recorded by Johanna Roe. 

6

https://parkingreform.org/resources/parking-lot-map/
https://parkingreform.org/resources/parking-lot-map/


Commission Meeting Date: May 8th, 2023   

 
CITY OF STEVENSON, WASHINGTON 

PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM 
 

AGENDA TITLE: Integrated Shoreline Public Access and Trails Plan – Charrette findings 

DEPARTMENT: Community Development 

PRESENTED BY: Alex Capron, AICP, Senior Planner - DCG/Watershed  

  

PROJECT UPDATE  
As the 2nd public involvement meeting for the Stevenson Integrated Shoreline Public Access 
and Trails Plan, the City conducted an in-person design charrette on April 19th, from 5-7:30pm 
at the Stevenson Community Library. The intent of this meeting was to help prioritize five 
shoreline projects from a total of nine possible shoreline access projects, as well as take 
feedback and priorities within certain individual projects. The meeting was well attended, with 
approximately 25 participants arriving throughout the evening (see Figure 1).  

 

Figure 1 - April 19 2023 Proposed Projects Charrette   

These nine projects were developed from an array of sources, including GIS analysis, existing 
long-range planning documents, community input from the first open house and a follow-up 

7



Planning Commission Meeting – 5/8/23 | Stevenson Integrated Shoreline Public Access & Trails Plan 2 
 

stakeholder meeting between the City and upper Rock Creek property owners in February 
2023. Projects (1-9) are summarized below: 

1. Invest in online presence to make shoreline recreational opportunities more accessible. 

2. SW Rock Creek Drive pedestrian improvements to enhance connection between 
waterfront and Rock Cove shorelines 

3. Enhance pedestrian connections to waterfront west end between Rock Cove and 
waterfront 

4. Enhance pedestrian connections to waterfront east end (adjacent to Kanaka Creek) 

5. Create public access to lower Rock Creek 

6. Create public pedestrian access to Rock Creek lower falls 

7. Create public pedestrian access to Rock Creek upper falls 

8. Rock Cove shoreline trail easement and stream enhancement (abutting mouth of Foster 
Creek) 

9. Explore partnership with Columbia Gorge Interpretive Center for shoreline access 

Further, a 2nd stakeholder meeting took place at the County Fairgrounds with County staff just 
before the charrette to better understand County future potential fairground projects in 
shoreline jurisdiction, and how this planning process can help facilitate and align with that 
effort. Shoreline restoration - including invasive species, non-native tree removal and native 
white oak and shoreline plantings were discussed, in-tandem with a formalized non-motorized 
boat launch near the Hegewald Center as near-term County projects discussed during this 
stakeholder meeting. 

 

CHARRETTE RESULTS 
For the charrette itself, respondents had the opportunity to impact the nine initial identified 
projects in two meaningful ways: 

1. Money exercise. Each attendee was given five $1,000 bills to allocate to one, five or 
several projects between the nine. One participant also dedicated their $5K to a 
separate restoration project not included amongst the nine. Results are summarized 
below: 

o Project 7 (Rock Creek path via County land to Rock Creek Falls): $21K 
o Project 2 (SW Rock Creek Dr pedestrian improvements: enhancing connection 

between waterfront and Rock Cove shorelines): $19K 
o Project 3 (Enhance pedestrian connections to waterfront west end): $12K 
o Project 4 (Enhance pedestrian connections to waterfront east end): $11K 
o Project 9 (Explore partnership with Columbia Gorge Interpretive Center for 

shoreline access): $10K 

Other projects were also “funded” as part of this exercise and will be included in the 

8



Planning Commission Meeting – 5/8/23 | Stevenson Integrated Shoreline Public Access & Trails Plan 3 
 

report, but may have less of a focus regarding refined cost estimates and design 
analysis. These include project #6 ($8K, pedestrian access to lower Rock Creek Falls), 
participant-offered project to fund aquatic invasive species management ($5K), project 
#8 ($4K, Rock Cove shoreline trail easement and stream enhancement), project #5 
($4K, create public access to lower Rock Creek and creek bank enhancement), and 
project #1 (invest in online presence for shoreline public access amenities).  

2. Dot stickers. All participants were able to help influence a particular alternative and 
show favored alternatives within several different projects. For example, Project #2 
contained three different alternatives the City can consider when pursuing grant funding 
(see Figure 2 below). 

 

 

Figure 2 - April 19 2023 Proposed Projects Charrette – Project #2 dot exercise  

Here, participants prefer options #1 (enacting City Wayfinding Plan between City park 
property at intersection of SW Rock Creek Dr and Highway 14 to the Mill Pond Trail 
entrance) and #2 (placing sidewalk on north end of street between each destination).  

Project #9 also gained significant interest with this dot exercise (see Figure 3).  

9



Planning Commission Meeting – 5/8/23 | Stevenson Integrated Shoreline Public Access & Trails Plan 4 
 

 

Figure 3 - April 19 2023 Proposed Projects Charrette – Project #9 dot exercise  

Here, participants placed a heavy emphasis on providing an interpretive trail as a 
collaborative effort between City and Museum, exploring grant opportunities for non-
motorized water access improvements.  

 
NEXT STEPS 

Following this charrette and initial findings found within, the City and consultant will finalize the 
plan, including project background, goals and objectives, project analysis methodology 
potential funding sources, permitting implications, and a project description and matrix for all 
nine projects (plus the County fairgrounds and participant-volunteered project), at a high level. 
A special focus on more refined design concepts and initial cost estimates will be conducted 
for the five prioritized projects identified during the charrette. With the Ecology grant expiring 
June 30th 2023, the vast majority of this remaining report work will occur this month, May 2023.  

A presentation to City Council as part of their June meeting will allow council members and the 
public to view the completed plan, overall project timeline and accomplishments, as well as 
next steps towards implementation via grant funding. Councilmember Wyatt, Mayor Anderson, 
(along with Planning Commissioner Ray) have been involved as the project steering committee 
from the start to ensure a smooth transition towards plan adoption. This plan may also identify 

10



Planning Commission Meeting – 5/8/23 | Stevenson Integrated Shoreline Public Access & Trails Plan 5 
 

future possible SMP amendments -as necessary- to better align with these proposed projects, 
to be brought before Ecology (as well as City officials) for consideration after the June 30th 
grant deadline. 

 
ATTACHMENTS 

Presentation boards for nine potential shoreline public access trails: https://dcgwatershed-
my.sharepoint.com/:b:/p/acapron/EVHAhxxWoCNOh9fCSh0MVpIBsJWzM_gRlfvCrK_4Y13Y9
g?e=uO3KOj   

SCHEDULE 
• Project Kick-off (October 2023) 

• Public Engagement Plan (January 2023) 

• Public Meeting #1 Open House (February 2023) 

• Planning Commission Meeting - April 10th, 2023 

• Public Meeting #2 Charrette April 19th, 2023 

• Planning Commission Meeting – May 8th, 2023 
• City Council Meeting – June 15th, 2023 

• Ecology grant closes – June 30th, 2023 

 

 

11

https://dcgwatershed-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/p/acapron/EVHAhxxWoCNOh9fCSh0MVpIBsJWzM_gRlfvCrK_4Y13Y9g?e=uO3KOj
https://dcgwatershed-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/p/acapron/EVHAhxxWoCNOh9fCSh0MVpIBsJWzM_gRlfvCrK_4Y13Y9g?e=uO3KOj
https://dcgwatershed-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/p/acapron/EVHAhxxWoCNOh9fCSh0MVpIBsJWzM_gRlfvCrK_4Y13Y9g?e=uO3KOj


C i t y  o f  S t e v e n s o n  |  2 0 2 3  S h o r e l i n e  P u b l i c  A c c e s s  &  T r a i l  P l a n  |  D C G / W a t e r s h e d

Objective Analysis:

Community Support:

Success Criteria for Shoreline Access & Trail Enhancement Projects

Introduction to Recommended Projects
Each of the projects described in the following pages aligned with the success criteria defined 
below. The projects presented fall within five major themes: resource connection, Waterfront-
to-Mill Pond connection, Rock Creek connection, and Rock Cove connection.

A digital geospatial analysis was conducted to examine connectivity and natural, physical, and 
experiential factors within the shoreline jurisdiction. Factors were scored according to different criteria 
indicating suitability for incorporation into the city’s trails network. Features representing obstacles 
or barriers to trail use or construction, such as steep slopes or major roadways, were scored as low 
suitability. And features representing benefits or value to trail use or construction, such as scenic 
or experiential character or close connectivity to existing trails, were scored highly. The result is an 
objective scoring identifying priority links and nodes for trail development.

Alignment with Long-Range Planning:
The City of Stevenson has many long-range planning documents that guide the city’s growth, 
development, and management of critical resources. Several plans, such as the SMP and 
Downtown Plan, are authored by the city; while other documents are contributed by key 
stakeholders, such as the Port. Together, these documents represent substantial investment and 
long-term study into the community’s specific needs and issues. As part of the trail plan, a review 
of applicable planning documents was performed to identify past and present recommendations 
relevant to shoreline trail and recreation planning. 

Community support is demonstrated by data collected through the public outreach and engagement 
process. Specific activities conducted to support the shoreline recreational planning effort included 
a promotional campaign and direct outreach to stakeholders representing a wide array of interest. 
Visitors, residents, property and business owners, as well as interested agencies and organizations 
were invited to participate in informational sessions about the planning effort and feedback 
exercises, such as surveys and workshops. Feedback was compiled and analyzed to identify key 
recommendations yielded from community input.

12



C i t y  o f  S t e v e n s o n  |  2 0 2 3  S h o r e l i n e  P u b l i c  A c c e s s  &  T r a i l  P l a n  |  D C G / W a t e r s h e dC i t y  o f  S t e v e n s o n  |  2 0 2 3  S h o r e l i n e  P u b l i c  A c c e s s  &  T r a i l  P l a n  |  D C G / W a t e r s h e d

   City of Stevenson - Analysis Mapping

Legend

Urban Growth Area Boundary

City Limits

SED Outline

Raster Analysis Scoring

Low Score: 0

High Score: 19

µ 0 1,000500
Feet

Date Exported: 4/6/2023 1:57 PM

Pa
th

: H
:\

PR
OJ

EC
TS

\2
02

2\
01

 - 
Ja

nu
ar

y\
22

01
23

 - 
St

ev
en

so
n 

SM
P 

Pu
bl

ic 
Ac

ce
ss

 P
la

n\
GI

S\
St

ev
en

so
n_

An
al

ys
isM

ap
se

t_
20

23
03

13
.a

pr
x

Wash i ngton

Oregon

   City of Stevenson - Analysis Mapping

Legend

Urban Growth Area Boundary

City Limits

SED Outline

Raster Analysis Scoring

Low Score: 0

High Score: 19

µ 0 1,000500
Feet

Date Exported: 4/6/2023 1:57 PM

Pa
th

: H
:\

PR
OJ

EC
TS

\2
02

2\
01

 - 
Ja

nu
ar

y\
22

01
23

 - 
St

ev
en

so
n 

SM
P 

Pu
bl

ic 
Ac

ce
ss

 P
la

n\
GI

S\
St

ev
en

so
n_

An
al

ys
isM

ap
se

t_
20

23
03

13
.a

pr
x

Wash i ngton

Oregon

   City of Stevenson - Analysis Mapping

Legend

Urban Growth Area Boundary

City Limits

SED Outline

Raster Analysis Scoring

Low Score: 0

High Score: 19

µ 0 1,000500
Feet

Date Exported: 4/6/2023 1:57 PM

Pa
th

: H
:\

PR
OJ

EC
TS

\2
02

2\
01

 - 
Ja

nu
ar

y\
22

01
23

 - 
St

ev
en

so
n 

SM
P 

Pu
bl

ic 
Ac

ce
ss

 P
la

n\
GI

S\
St

ev
en

so
n_

An
al

ys
isM

ap
se

t_
20

23
03

13
.a

pr
x

Wash i ngton

Oregon

Kanaka Creek

Kanaka Creek

Foster Creek

Foster Creek

Rock Creek

Rock Creek

Nelson Creek

Nelson Creek

55

22
33

44

66
77

88

99
11

RESOURCE CONNECTION:

Strengthened online mapping 
resource and information for 
visitors.

Legend
Primary routes related to shoreline access

Primary downtown pedestrian network

Existing shoreline trails and amenities

Existing pedestiran experience on or along 
shoreline on sidewalk

Missing pedestrian connection

Informal seasonal trail along creek

Future desired trail

Neighborhood flow into downtown

Rock CoveRock Cove

Columbia RiverColumbia River

ROCK COVE CONNECTION:ROCK COVE CONNECTION:

SR-14
SR-14

Base Map Legend

ROCK CREEK CONNECTION:ROCK CREEK CONNECTION:

WATERFRONT CONNECTION:WATERFRONT CONNECTION:

13



Existing Conditions

Enhancement Options

C i t y  o f  S t e v e n s o n  |  2 0 2 3  S h o r e l i n e  P u b l i c  A c c e s s  &  T r a i l  P l a n

Objective Analysis:

Alignment with Long-Range Planning:

Community Support:

The recreational opportunities analysis revealed an gap that can limit 
public shoreline access. Specifically, it revealed the lack of a single 
resource for verified and up-to-date information on recreational 
opportunities and amenities. While information is published 
separately across many sources, including recreational opportunity 
providers and informal user forums, information was found to be 
incomplete, conflicting, or incorrect.

A review of planning documents yielded many project ideas and 
recommendations as well as planning tools for processes or incentives 
to move plans forward. Many of the projects included outreach and 
utilized online surveys and communication. No previous plan however 
has addressed the opportunity to make information about existing 
opportunities more accessible online. The current city parks website 
includes only city-owned and maintained parks.

Members of the community have expressed frustration over 
visitors acting on incorrect information they found online. Public 
trespass through private property to access Rock creek is an 
example. Regardless of signage on site, visitors are led on by online 
descriptions. Neighbors would like to redirect trespassers, but 
currently have no resource to direct them to. Other public comments 
included support of a webpage that included amenities, as well as 
rules and regulations.

The city’s current website provides visitor 
information under the ‘Visit Stevenson’ 
tab; however, it lacks any information 
about shoreline recreational use and 
amenities on the Columbia River, Rock 
Cove, and Rock Creek.

The city could enhance its existing website by adding a 
button to ‘Explore the shore’ that leads users to shoreline 
recreation opportunities, events and activities, including 
non-city-owned public access options.

The website could provide information to direct and 
guide recreational visitors, such as by providing directions 
to public shoreline access points and parking, while 
directing visitors away from private, inaccessible, or 
sensitive areas. Content could be updated easily to 
feature seasonal or timely content, such as wildlife 
migration or invasive species alerts. Rules and regulations 
related to shoreline recreation could also be described.

Images on the left show various examples of interactive 
maps hosted by cities and non-profit organizations. These 
maps allow users to see not only the overall extent of and 
connections between recreation opportunities, but also to 
find out more detail about individual trails or amenities.

Residents and visitors increasingly rely on 
internet resources for information about 
recreational amenities and opportunities. 
Land managers, like agencies and 
municipalities, often provide reliable and 
current information. When an official 
source is absent or hard to find, second-
hand information is shared through 
informal sources, like message boards 
and recreational user forums.

Invest in online presence to make shoreline 
recreational opportunities more accessible

11

14



Legend
1 SW Rock Creek Drive with 60-ft ROW

Start of Rock Cove Trail Segment
Existing Continuous Sidewalk (North 
side of SW Rock Creek Drive Only)
Existing Striping for On-Street 
Parking
Existing Fire Hydrant

2 End of Sidewalk on South Side of SW 
Rock Creek Drive
Existing City Standard  Decoratve 
Lamp Post
Existing Crosswalk

Begin Mill Pond Trail

1

2

Most suitable: 
Landscape Strip

Acceptable: Parked car lane Least desirable: No buffer

Gateway/Monument 
sign for directional and 
informational purposes, as 
proposed in the Wayfinding 
Master plan

1

NORTH

Rock Cove Medallion per City Plan Documents

Precedent Wayfinding images
 6ft    2ft    8ft             11ft              11ft             8ft    2ft  6ft       6ft 6ft    2ft    8ft             11ft              11ft             8ft    2ft  6ft       6ft

Existing Conditions

Enhancement Options

C i t y  o f  S t e v e n s o n  |  2 0 2 3  S h o r e l i n e  P u b l i c  A c c e s s  &  T r a i l  P l a n

Objective Analysis:

Alignment with Long-Range Planning:

Community Support:

SW Rock Creek Drive pedestrian 
improvements: enhance connection 
between waterfront & Rock Cove shorelines

22

There is a gap in shoreline access opportunities between the 
waterfront and Rock Cove, as well as a break in a potential continuous 
shoreline trail. There are physical challenges and ownership 
constraints to making an immediate connection along the shoreline. 
SW Rock Creek Drive contains a pedestrian pathway connecting 
the two shoreline access areas. Currently this key corridor includes 
crosswalks and a continuous sidewalk on one side of the street with 
different degrees of pedestrian-vehicle separation.

Multiple planning documents commissioned and adopted by the 
city have identified SW Rock Creek Drive as the primary route to 
connect pedestrians and cyclists between the waterfront, Rock Cove, 
and beyond, namely the 1991 Stevenson, Washington Pedestrian 
and Bicycle Links, Walker & Macy and 2012 Stevenson Wayfinding 
Master Plan by Rock Cove Design. Signage and street improvements 
have been recommended. As a result of these master planning 
recommendations, sidewalks on both sides of the street have been 
proposed previously.  

Multiple residents expressed the desire to have a continuous 
shoreline trail along the Columbia River, Rock Cove and beyond. 
More specifically, many comments addressed the gap between 
the Waterfront Trail and Rock Cove Trail, two primary shoreline 
destinations in the city. Related to this consensus was a desire 
to strengthen neighborhood connections to the shoreline. An 
enhanced and protected pathway would contribute to a strengthened 
connection between two prominent trails.

a

Improve Pedestrian Experience: 
Add sidewalk to south side of SW Rock Creek 
Drive, maintain parked car lanes on both sides, 
and add landscape strip to one side of the 
street only. This option can be combined with 
wayfinding improvements.

Improve Wayfinding: Add on-the-ground  
wayfinding to clarify the connection between the 
waterfront and Rock Cove. The City of Stevenson 
Wayfinding Master Plan has guidelines for the 
installation of pavement markers. Markers could 
use the plan’s Artisan Medallion graphics created 
for each area. Markers or paint can be added to 
the existing sidewalk.

Satisfies Shoreline Public Access and Trail Plan Goal:
Increase public access to publicly owned areas of the shorelines (RCW 90.58.020(5))

b

    6ft    2ft    9ft              11ft              11ft     2ft     7ft               12ft    6ft    2ft    9ft              11ft              11ft     2ft     7ft               12ft

c

Protected Multi-Use Trail: 
Add multi-use paved trail to one side of 
SW Rock Creek Drive with a wide landscape 
buffer. This option has the most emphasis on 
pedestrian safety and allows for heavy use 
including bicyclists. A sidewalk and parked car 
lane remain on the opposite side of the street. 

15



To Rock CoveTo Rock Cove

1

Future Development 
Proposed Layout 
- Conceptual Only 

(Covalent Architecture, 
October 2019)

Rock Creek Drive 

Rock Creek Drive 

SW 1st S
t

SR 14

Railro
ad Stre

et Easement

Railro
ad Stre

et Easement

Public Shoreline Access 

Public Shoreline Access 

To Rock CoveTo Rock Cove

1

2

3

4

5

NORTH

Existing Conditions

Enhancement Options

C i t y  o f  S t e v e n s o n  |  2 0 2 3  S h o r e l i n e  P u b l i c  A c c e s s  &  T r a i l  P l a n

Objective Analysis:

Alignment with Long-Range Planning:

Community Support:

Enhance pedestrian connections to 
waterfront west end

33

(An image showing current shoreline amenities and access on the 
west side of the waterfront, near the terminus of Russell Ave.) Private 
ownership and a lack of right-of-way parcels limits public shoreline 
access near the terminus of Russell Ave. Physical challenges of the site 
could be mitigated during design. The railroad and State Route 14 are 
significant barriers to a safe pedestrian crossing experience. 

Recent planning documents, including a vision for downtown, have 
focused on linking Rock Creek shorelines through downtown to 
the Columbia River waterfront. One concept included an extension 
of Rock Creek Drive south towards the waterfront. This connection 
would meet Comprehensive Plan Transportation & Circulation Goal 
7.4 to “develop a plan for safe and convenient alternative forms of 
transportation, such as bikeways, walkways, and pathways.”

A continuous shoreline trail between the waterfront and Rock Cove 
is highly desired by the public. The current connection is through 
downtown, however many comments expressed support for a multi-
modal trail and additional shoreline access opportunities in the area 
between the two existing trails. 

Legend
1 Western end of waterfront 

public pedestrian access area
Existing pedestrian connection 
to Rock Cove shoreline trail 
and amenities
Gateway to Waterfront public 
shoreline access area
Private land and gap in 
public shoreline access and 
amenities, and connection to 
Rock Cove shoreline trail 

Shoreline Public Access & Trail Plan Goal Met:
Increase recreational opportunities for the 
public in the shoreline (RCW 90.58.020(6))

Sequence of Effort:
•	City coordinates with developers to 

understand opportunities for easement for 
public shoreline access

•	City works with developers to streamline 
permitting and construction of shoreline 
improvements

•	City dedicates funding and staff to 
maintenance of shoreline improvements

Legend
Proposed Railroad Street Public Access 
easement to connect to shoreline

1
Example of one concept plan for 
future development of the west end 
of the waterfront
Recommended extension of SW Rock 
Creek Drive through to 1st Street 
and Railroad Street with future 
development

2
Recommended location for public 
access to shoreline and /or shoreline 
recreational amenity

3 Proposed public water access via 
easement

4 Gateway Park and pedestrian access 
to Rock Cove shoreline trail

5 Gateway to central Waterfront public 
shoreline access area
Future consideration of public trail 
extension via easement under SR-14 
and BNSF Railroad

SW 1st S
t

2nd St

SW Casca
de Ave

SW
 Seymour St

SW
 Russell  St

2nd St

SW
 Seymour St

SW
 Russell  St

16



1st S
tre

et

1st S
tre

et

SW
 C

as
ca

de
 A

ve

SW
 C

as
ca

de
 A

ve

Kanaka Creek

Kanaka Creek

Kanaka 
Creek

Legend
Eastern end of waterfront public 
pedestrian access area and Cascade 
Boat Launch
Existing informal pedestrian 
connection via railroad underpass 
Informal dirt trail between asphalt 
road and 1st street guardrail
Section of 1st St has sidewalk on 
north side only
Existing crosswalks

1
Two main roads connecting 
eastside neighborhoods to the 
shoreline

1
1

1

2

Legend
Eastern end of waterfront public pedestrian access area and Cascade 
Boat Launch.
Pedestrian improvements to Kanaka Creek Underpass. Add signage 
to warn drivers to ‘share the road’ with pedestrians. Also, future 
environmental study adding pedestrian improvements (see grated 
decking example #3) adjacent to existing roadway.
Formalize dirt path into paved pedestrian connection to 1st street 
once sidewalks are constructed on the south side.
Continue and implement existing 1st street improvements project, 
expanding scope to include trail connection, including grated decking 
trail adjacent to existing gravel roadway over Kanaka Creek.
Commission study to create safe pedestrian crossing between SW 
Cascade Ave and Lutheran Church Rd across SR14.

Grated decking

Engineering plans for 1st St Improvements1

3

Shoreline Public Access 
& Trail Plan Goal Met:
Increase recreational 
opportunities for the 
public in the shoreline 
(RCW 90.58.020(6))

NORTH

Example Sign2

2
3

Colum
bia St

1st St
1st St

SW
 C

as
ca

de
 A

ve1s
t S

t

SR 14

Existing Conditions

Enhancement Options

C i t y  o f  S t e v e n s o n  |  2 0 2 3  S h o r e l i n e  P u b l i c  A c c e s s  &  T r a i l  P l a n

Objective Analysis:

Alignment with Long-Range Planning:

Community Support:

Enhance pedestrian connections to 
waterfront east end

44

The analysis identified gap between public trails and amenities along 
the waterfront and the east end of the city. An existing railroad 
underpass provides an opportunity for connection across the railroad 
right-of-way, but it lacks pedestrian safety measures. Currently, the 
underpass consists of a gravel and asphalt road that is informally 
shared by both vehicles and pedestrians. The road ends at SR-14 
where there are no sidewalks or crosswalks.

In the past 30 years, many public planning documents have proposed 
improvements to connect to the east side of the waterfront. Multiple 
projects have recommended improvements to Columbia Street and 
1st Street to enhance pedestrian safety and increase connectivity. A 
75% design construction document set for 1st Street acknowledges 
an existing informal path connection to the underpass and shoreline. 
Further, the culvert at 1st Street and Kanaka Creek is a known fish 
barrier.

Multiple residents expressed the desire to have safer and improved 
access to the waterfront and waterfront trail from the east side of 
the city. Residents admitted they often crossed SR 14 outside of the 
crosswalk, climbing over guard rails to get to the shoreline. Beyond 
the large area of new housing already under development, demand 
for new homes and redevelopment of existing homes is expected to 
increase over time.

Kanaka Creek

Kanaka Creek

17



Legend
1 Existing city-owned parcel with 

abandoned residence
Entire creekside of parcel is 
armored. This is the only section 
of armoring on the east bank of 
the entire creek. 

2 Mostly open site apart from 
creekside trees

3
Street end location adjacent to 
county parcel with no sidewalks 
on either side of this section

4 Untreated stormwater outfalls 
directly into creek.
Informal ‘water trail’

Riprap armoring1

Open site conditions2

Street end lacking sidewalks3

1

2

3
4

NORTH

Legend
1 Remove armoring and soften shoreline to 

allow ramped access down to creek
2 Beach/picnic area

3 Picnic tables over crushed rock pad

4 Crushed rock parking stalls for maintenance/ 
accessible parking
Connect pedestrians to site from SW Rock 
Creek with sidewalks and wayfinding tools
Roadside swale or other means to daylight 
and treat stormwater
Informal ‘water trail’ leads to Lower Falls to 
the north and Rock Cove to the south

1
2

3

4

Example of stormwater treatment

Existing Conditions

Enhancement Options

C i t y  o f  S t e v e n s o n  |  2 0 2 3  S h o r e l i n e  P u b l i c  A c c e s s  &  T r a i l  P l a n

Objective Analysis:

Alignment with Long-Range Planning:

Community Support:

55
Create public access to lower Rock Creek

The analysis of shoreline jurisdiction within this reach found that the 
banks of the lower reach were physically less steep than the upper 
reach. An inventory of known recreational use found a gap in public 
areas to access lower Rock Creek and found recreational features 
to be lacking. In addition, the analysis identified an opportunity to 
provide public access on the small city-owned parcel adjacent to Rock 
Creek in the lower reach.

Multiple planning documents commissioned and adopted by the city 
have discussed the need to access rock creek as well as the lack of safe 
public access and trespass concerns. The 2018 shoreline restoration 
plan identifies two separate projects in this parcel. The first is ‘r.8 
Vancouver avenue house removal’ and the second is ‘r.13 Vancouver 
avenue stormwater outfall replacement project’. The untreated 
stormwater outfall drains a large portion of the city’s residential core. 
Further, the city may consider a future bridge project at this location as 
it assesses the rock creek drive bridge replacement (SMP Restoration 
Plan Project R.8). 

Multiple residents expressed the desire for access to Rock Creek to 
see the waterfalls. When asked how they get to the falls now, many 
described walking up the creek channel in the summer time at low 
water levels. The creek can be accessed at the mouth then sightseers 
continue walking along the west bank toward the first falls.. Residents 
stressed that the current situation fails to combat misleading 
information found online that promotes trespassing through private 
property. They want a formal public access point.

Project meets/achieves the following Goals:
•	Increase public access to publicly owned areas of the 

shorelines (RCW 90.58.020(5))
•	Increase recreational opportunities for the public in the 

shoreline (RCW 90.58.020(6))
•	Alleviate trailhead congestion, trash accumulation, trespass, 

and other neighborhood impacts at informal and/or poorly 
planned shoreline access areas.

18



Existing topography (2-foot contours), public right-of-way (yellow), and parcel lines (black) (Skamania County GIS, 2022)

NORTH

Loop Rd

N
W

 Chesser St

Existing Conditions

Enhancement Options

C i t y  o f  S t e v e n s o n  |  2 0 2 3  S h o r e l i n e  P u b l i c  A c c e s s  &  T r a i l  P l a n

Objective Analysis:

Alignment with Long-Range Planning:

Community Support:

66
Create public pedestrian access to Rock 
Creek lower falls

Public access to the upper reaches of Rock Creek is complicated by 
both significant physical barriers and lack of public land.The area is 
heavily encumbered with geohazards such as landslides and steep 
slopes. An inventory of use found a gap in public areas to access 
Rock Creek and found it lacking in recreational features. In addition, 
the Piper Landslide in 2006 dramatically changed the landscape 
adjacent to the falls making it undesirable for structures. The future 
development potential of this area is unclear.

Multiple planning documents have discussed the need to access Rock 
Creek. The majority of the remediation proposed and implemented by 
WDNR and the Port of Skamania County in response to the landslide 
in this area focused on dredging, protecting existing bridges, and 
restoring shoreline along the Columbia River. No restoration has been 
proposed within the privately owned parcels of the slide area itself.

Multiple residents expressed the desire to have access to Rock Creek 
to see the waterfalls. When asked how the falls are accessed now, 
many described walking up the creek channel in the summer time or 
walking through county-owned land to the north. Residents also felt 
that abundant online information about the falls has undermined their 
desire to keep access informal and restricted to local residents. 

Shoreline Public Access & Trail Plan Goal Met:
•	Increase public access to publicly owned areas 

of the shorelines (RCW 90.58.020(5))
•	Increase recreational opportunities for the 

public in the shoreline (RCW 90.58.020(6))
•	Alleviate trailhead congestion, trash 

accumulation, trespass, and other 
neighborhood impacts at informal and/or 
poorly planned shoreline access areas.

•	Provide continuous public access (SMP 4.6)

Sequence of Effort:
1.	City coordinates with private landowners 

to understand opportunities for easement 
purchase

2.	City pursues grants to fund studies and 
design plans to construct shoreline access 
trail and signage in addition to vegetation 
restoration within easement

3.	City maintains trail and access area (trash 
removal, trail maintenance, disturbance calls).

Legend
Approximate location of lower 
falls
Potential trail easement linking 
Piper Road with Cazare Ln 
Easement option 1
Easement option 2
Easement option 3
Cliff

19



Existing Conditions

Enhancement Options

C i t y  o f  S t e v e n s o n  |  2 0 2 3  S h o r e l i n e  P u b l i c  A c c e s s  &  T r a i l  P l a n

Objective Analysis:

Alignment with Long-Range Planning:

Community Support:

PRIVATE LAND

COUNTY-OWNED LAND

PU
BLI

C R
IG

HT 
OF 

W
AY

SW Ryan Allen Rd

Aalvik Rd

COUNTY
 O

W
NED

 L
AND

77
Create public pedestrian access to Rock 
Creek upper falls

The upper reaches of Rock Creek are difficult to access both physically 
as well as publically. A substantial portion of the creek is bordered 
by private property, however county-owned land is located north of 
the popular falls. In general the creek is bordered by steep banks, 
however sections of accessible slopes are present. There is overlap in 
these accessible areas with county-owned land within the City’s Urban 
Growth Area (UGA).

The SMP adopted by the City discusses the need to access Rock 
Creek with SMP Policy 4.6.2(1) that describes the objective to have 
continuous public pedestrian access along the shoreline (including the 
creek). It also addresses the need to consider private property rights, 
public safety, and navigational rights when providing public access 
(SMP Policy 4.6.2(4)). 

Multiple residents expressed the desire to have both physical 
and visual access to upper Rock Creek and the waterfalls. Clearly 
depicted, safe, and public access is desired in order to prevent private 
trespassing, and protect this treasured amenity for future generations. 
Formal access could prevent trampling, concentrate impacts, and 
allow for trash pick-up.

PRIVATE LAND

COUNTY-OWNED LAND

PU
BLI

C R
IG

HT 
OF 

W
AY

Shoreline Public Access & Trail Plan Goal Met:
• Increase public access to publicly owned areas of the

shorelines (RCW 90.58.020(5))
• Increase recreational opportunities for the public in

the shoreline (RCW 90.58.020(6))
• Alleviate trailhead congestion, trash accumulation,

trespass, and other neighborhood impacts at informal
and/or poorly planned shoreline access areas.

Sequence of Opportunities:
1. City coordinates with County to understand

opportunities for ownership or easement or 
collaboration on shared use.

2. City works with County to pursue grants for
construction of shoreline access trail and signage 
through a developers agreement or other tool.

3. City collaborates with County to maintain trail
and access area (trash removal, trail maintenance, 
disturbance calls).

Legend
Existing county-owned parcel

Existing public right of way

Rock Creek OHWM (Public)
Possible trail to access Rock Creek 
(follows existing goat-path)
Signage could be posted to make 
private property boundaries clear 
to visitors

1 Approximate location of Upper
Falls (within county property limits)

2 Approximate location of middle
falls (within county property limits)
Parking in ROW along SW Ryan 
Allen Rd

2
1

Photo source: Facebook.com (Pat Kolberg, Oct 2021)

SW Ryan Allen Rd

Aalvik Rd

COUNTY
 O

W
NED

 L
AND

20



Existing Conditions

Enhancement Options

C i t y  o f  S t e v e n s o n  |  2 0 2 3  S h o r e l i n e  P u b l i c  A c c e s s  &  T r a i l  P l a n

Objective Analysis:

Alignment with Long-Range Planning:

Community Support:

88
Rock Cove shoreline trail easement 
extension and enhancement

Around Rock Cove there is a trail and informal shoreline access on the 
eastern half of the cove only. The county owned fairgrounds have a 
shoreline trail that transitions onto the SW Rock Creek Drive sidewalk. 
This sidewalk serves as an extension of the Mill Pond Trail and runs 
adjacent to suitable vacant and under-utilized land on the shoreline, 
including the Columbia Gorge Interpretive Center. It also passes Foster 
Creek which empties into Rock Cove via an outfall. 

Multiple planning documents have proposed increasing shoreline 
recreation opportunities within Rock Cove. The Fatal Flaw Analysis for 
Watercraft Recreation Sites prepared for the Port of Skamania County 
(JD White Company, 1995) recognizes this specific area as having 
a high potential to provide shoreline water access opportunities, 
including the old Mill Site on the west side. Since this area was heavily 
impacted previously, less mature native vegetation is present.

Multiple residents expressed appreciation of the Mill Pond trail. There 
is a desire to expand this type of trail experience further around 
Rock Cove, as well as provide amenities similar to the Columbia River 
waterfront. More specifically, many comments discuss bird watching 
and the unique experience of kayaking or other non-motorized 
boating within the quiet of the cove as compared to the larger 
Columbia River. There is currently no official hand-carry launch or 
water access points on the cove. 

1

2

Shoreline Public Access & Trail Plan Goal Met:
Increase recreational opportunities for the public in the 
shoreline (RCW 90.58.020(6))

Sequence of Opportunities:
1. Starting with SMP Restoration Plan Project R.6 - Foster

Creek Culvert Replacement project, city determines budget 
for shoreline enhancement options

2. City conducts public outreach to determine which
enhancement options to prioritize

3. City constructs shoreline recreation facilities
4. City maintains shoreline access area(s)

Legend
Existing culvert and outlet for Foster Creek, a 
fish-bearing stream. Potential for restoration 
at the outlet into the cove.

1
Opportunity to build a formal hand-carry 
launch with amenities like a boat wash station 
to combat invasive aquatic vegetation

2 Site could provide some parking and picnic
area for day-use.

Water trailhead with boat wash 
station

2

Photo source: Google Maps Streetview, July 2018

21



2

1

5

3

4

Existing Conditions

Enhancement Options

C i t y  o f  S t e v e n s o n  |  2 0 2 3  S h o r e l i n e  P u b l i c  A c c e s s  &  T r a i l  P l a n

Objective Analysis:

Alignment with Long-Range Planning:

Community Support:

99
Explore partnership with Columbia Gorge 
Interpretive Center for shoreline access

The analysis identified a lack of shoreline recreation facilities along 
Rock Cove or a continuous shoreline trail, specifically on the west 
side. Physical access constraints are not an issue, however ownership 
is a potential barrier. The large area of land the museum sits on at 
the west side of the cove does not have any shoreline trail or physical 
access areas. The quasi-public status of ownership makes public 
access a potential option here.  

Multiple documents have proposed increasing shoreline recreation 
opportunities within Rock Cove. The Fatal Flaw Analysis for Watercraft 
Recreation Sites prepared for the Port of Skamania County (JD 
White Company, 1995) recognizes this specific area as having a high 
potential to provide shoreline water access opportunities, including 
the mention of an old boat ramp that could be restored. Other sites 
had concerns of a limited area, but this site is large and highly visible.

Multiple residents expressed appreciation of the scenic view found 
along the Mill Pond trail. There is a desire to expand this type of 
trail experience around Rock Cove. The Columbia Gorge Interpretive 
Center is admired and loved by the community. Multiple comments 
wondered at the opportunites to have shoreline access be a part of 
the visitor experience at the museum.

Legend
1 Columbia Gorge Interpretive Center Museum

2 Outdoor exhibit area

3 Parking area

4 Rock Cove Assisted Living Community

5 Skamania Lodge

Rock CoveRock Cove
SR-14SR-14

SW Rock Creek Dr
SW Rock Creek Dr

Shoreline Public Access & Trail Plan Goal Met:
Increase recreational opportunities for the public in the 
shoreline (RCW 90.58.020(6))

Partnership Opportunities:
• City could work with the museum to create an

interpretive plan for the city. This could include
interpretive trails such as a water trail within the cove
itself.

• City could collaborate with museum to explore grant
opportunites to fund shoreline improvements

• City could work with museum to streamline permitting
and construction of shoreline improvements

• City could dedicate funding and staff to maintenance
of shoreline improvements

Precedent imagery of shoreline improvement 
opportunities that could be unique to a museum space 
shown on the right:

Photo source: Googlemaps.com, Columbia Gorge Interpretive Center, May 2018

Photo source: Dept of Ecology Obliques

22


	Top
	1.	Public Comment Expectations
	2.	Public Comment Period
	3.	Meeting Minutes
	04_10_23PCMeetingMinutes

	4.	Shoreline Public Access Planning
	TWC_ShorelineMemo_2023.05.08

	5.	Subcommittee Reports
	6.	Thought of the Month
	7.	Staff & Commission Reports
	Bottom

